DATE:
TIME:

PLACE:

PAGE:

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

October 15, 2025
9:00 a.m.
Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL
ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY.

AGENDA ITEMS

1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS
(@ Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon.

3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes. We encourage all community
members to engage with public comments to the Board of Commissioners. However, out of
respect for our audience and a general sense of decorum please refrain from vulgar,
threatening or inappropriate language.)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM October 8, 2025
APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

MONTHLY TREASURER REPORT - Steve Milligan

N oo o &

CONSENT CALENDAR

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-180, State of Oregon Dept. of Corrections
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director)

b) Polk County Contract No. 25-181, Oregon Health Authority
(Rosana Warren Rivera, Public Health)

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION
PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660(2)(f) To consider information or records
that are exempt by law from public inspection.

ADJOURNMENT

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Page 1 of 2



POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS
GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse,
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkhkkkkkk

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule
it accordingly.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT

Land Use

1. Chairman opens hearing.
a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement.
b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest).

2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit).
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit).
4, Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply

note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is

limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE

TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND

TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE.

a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal.

b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney,
consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The
Chairman may require proof of designation.

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit).
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).
a. Staff.

b. Applicant (Appellant).

c. Individuals testifying.

Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record.

Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision.

The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21
days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room.

© o~

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Page 2 of 2



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MINUTES October 8, 2025

1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Mordhorst declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of
Commissioners to be in session. Commissioner Gordon was present and Commissioner Pope was
absent.

Staff present:  Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer
Morgan Smith, County Counsel
Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week.
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas,
Oregon.

3. COMMENTS
None.
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA.

BOTH VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF October 1, 2025

MOTION: COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF October 1, 2025.

BOTH VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

BOTH VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY VOTE OF THE QUORUM.



October 8, 2025

Page 2
7. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS
The Board of Commissioners and staff recognized the following employees for their
length of service:
e Dawn Feldman, 20 years of service
e Billy German, 10 years of service
e Olivia Maruame, 10 years of service
e  Michael Smith, 10 years of service
8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE

Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director, is recommending the reclassification of an
employee from a Community Resource Connector Il to a Lead Community Resource
Connector. Should the reclassification be approved, it would be effective October 1, 2025
and have a fiscal impact on the FY25-26 budget of approximately $2,700 including PERS
contribution should it be for 12 months.

APPROVED BY CONSENSUS OF THE QUORUM.

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR:

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-175, Oregon Health
Authority
(Rosana Warren Rivera, Public Health)

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Mordhorst adjourned the
meeting at 9:05 a.m.



October 8, 2025
Page 3

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Minutes: Nicole Pineda
Approved: October 15, 2025



Local Public Safety Coordinating Council

850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon 503-623-8173

October 7, 2025

Jeremiah Stromberg, Assistant Director Community Corrections Divisions
Department of Corrections

3723 Fairview Industrial Dr. SE #200

Salem, Oregon 97302

Dear Assistant Director Stromberg,

This letter 1s provided in support of the 2025-2027 Biennial Plan submitted by Polk
County Community Corrections. The plan was presented to the Local Public Safety
Coordinating Council and we are proud to have approved it. We are confident in the
abilities of our Community Corrections Department and are excited to continue to
collaborate with them through the Local Public Safety Coordinating Council.

We know from experience that when we work together, we find the most efficiency and
success for offender supervision, services, and accountability. Thank you for accepting and
reviewing Polk County's Biennial Plan for 2025-2027.

Cordially,

Torh. M

Sheriff Mark Garton
Chair, Polk County Local Public Safety Coordinating Council

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: Lyle Mordhorst ¢ Craig Pope ¢ Jeremy Gordon
CHAIRMAN: Sheriff Mark Garton



Contract Review Sheet

POLK COUNTY
Staff Contact: Jodi Merritt Department: Community Corrections
Title: Director Consent Calendar Date:

Contractor Name: State of Oregon, Department of Corrections

Address: 2575 Center Street NE

City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97301
Effective Dates - From: July 1, 2025 Thru: June 30, 2027

Contract Amount: $4,376,222
Source Selection:

Sole Source Personal Services

Competitive Quotes [1| Special/lExempt Procurement (explain below):
Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Background/Discussion:

The DOC through the Community Corrections division provides funding to counties for supervision of
clients within the community. PCCC provides three main divisions supported by the State of Oregon's
Community Corrections Act funding. These divisions include: Supervision - supporting 7 FTE and
supervise approximately 520 adult felony/misdemeanor clients within the community; Programs -
provide funding for clients to access necessary programs to assist in cognitive development and
restructuring; Community Service - supports 3 FTE to provide restorative justice within the community.
Fiscal Impact:

This agreement will provide $4,376,222 in revenue to the department over the biennium - July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027.

Recommendation:

Community Corrections recommends approval of this agreement to provide continued support to the
supervision of offenders within the community.

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:

Name: Sam Hittle E-mail: hittle.sam@polkcountyor.gov

Name: E-mail:

Name: E-mail:




Polk County Contract No. 25-180

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT #6914
BETWEEN THE STATE OF OREGON AND POLK COUNTY

This Intergovernmental #6914 (Agreement) is between the State of Oregon acting by and
through its Department of Corrections, hereafter called DEPARTMENT, and Polk County,
hereafter called COUNTY.

Whereas, DEPARTMENT is an agency of the State of Oregon and COUNTY is a
unit of local government of the State of Oregon and both parties desire to
cooperate by agreement to provide correctional services in COUNTY within the
requirements as authorized by ORS 423.475 to 423.565;

Whereas, the Legislative Assembly of Oregon enacted legislation establishing
shared responsibility between county corrections programs and the Department on
a continuing basis (ORS 423.475 to 423.565);

Whereas, ORS 144.106 provides “the supervisory authority shall use a continuum
of administrative sanctions for violations of post-prison supervision”;

Whereas, ORS 144.334 provides that the Board of Parole and Post-Prison
Supervision may authorize issuance of citations by supervising officers;

Whereas, ORS 144.343 provides that the Board of Parole and Post-Prison
Supervision may delegate the authority to impose sanctions as provided in ORS
144.106 and to continue a violator on parole or post-prison supervision with the
same or modified conditions;

Whereas, ORS 423.478(2)(a) - (f) assigns responsibility for all offenders on
probation, parole, post-prison supervision and those offenders sentenced or
revoked for periods of one year or less, and on conditional release to COUNTY;

Whereas, ORS 137.593 and 137.595 provide that courts may delegate the
authority to parole/probation officers to impose sanctions for probationers through
a system of Structured Sanctions; and

Whereas, ORS 423.555 requires DEPARTMENT, with cooperation from COUNTY,
to establish and operate a Statewide Evaluation and Information System and to
monitor effectiveness of corrections services provided to criminal offenders under
ORS 423.500 to 423.560.

Now, therefore, THE PARTIES HERETO, in consideration of the mutual promises, terms
and conditions hereinafter provided, agree to the following:

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



DEFINITIONS

A. Amendment: Any change to this Agreement that alters the terms and
conditions of the Agreement, effective only after all parties have signed and
all approvals have been obtained. Plan Modifications are NOT
Amendments.

B. Budget Summary: The part of the County Corrections Plan that reflects the
amount of County Corrections Grant funds granted by DEPARTMENT to
COUNTY to implement the programs in the Plan. The Budget Summary is
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A.

C. Community Corrections Manager: Individual designated by COUNTY
pursuant to ORS 423.525 as responsible for administration of the
community corrections programs as set forth by the Plan.

D. County Corrections: All County agencies and officials who carry out the
responsibilities in ORS 423.478(2)(a)-(f) and the activities of carrying out
those responsibilities.

E. County Community Corrections Plan or Plan: A document developed by the
Local Public Safety Coordinating Councils and adopted by COUNTY’s
governing body pursuant to ORS 423.525 and 423.535 and received by
DEPARTMENT's director or designee.

F. County Community Corrections Plan Modification: A written change or
alteration to the County Corrections Plan promulgated by COUNTY
modifying the Plan subject to ORS 423.525, effective upon the date the
written change or alteration has been submitted to the DEPARTMENT
representative under this Agreement.

G. County Community Corrections Grant: Grant(s) made by DEPARTMENT to
assist COUNTY in the implementation and operation of county corrections
programs including, but not limited to, preventive or diversionary
correctional programs, probation, parole, post-prison supervision work
release and local correctional facilities and programs for adults on
supervision.

H. Adult on Supervision (AOS): Any person under supervision who is on
parole, post-prison supervision, transitional leave, work release, local
control, and/or probation status.

Sanctions or Structured Sanctions: A response to adult on supervision
violations of conditions of supervision that uses custody units.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



Statewide Evaluation and Information System: The Corrections Information
Systems (CIS) including the Offender Profile System (OPS), the Integrated
Supervision Information System (ISIS), Case Management for Institutions
(CMI), Offender Management System (OMS), Offender Information System
(OI1S), Interstate Compact Offender Tracking System (ICOTS), and related
case management modules.

Supervisory Authority: The local corrections official or officials designated in
each COUNTY by that COUNTY’s Board of County Commissioners or
county court to operate corrections supervision services, custodial facilities
or both.

Il AUTHORITY AND DURATION

A.

Authority

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the provisions of ORS 423.520,
ORS 423.530 and 423.535.

Duration
This Agreement will become effective on July 1, 2025 and will remain in

effect until June 30, 2027 or until terminated according to Section X,
captioned TERMINATION.

M. PLAN; PLAN MODIFICATIONS

A. County Community Corrections Plan: COUNTY will create a County

Community Corrections Plan meeting the requirements of ORS 423.525
outlining the basic structure of supervision, services, and local sanctions to
be applied to adults on supervision sentenced or convicted of felonies,
designated drug-related misdemeanors, or designated person
misdemeanors and on supervision in the county. The Plan consists of
program descriptions and budget allocations and is included by this
reference as part of this Agreement. The Plan must be received and
approved by DEPARTMENT before disbursements can be made by
COUNTY.

. Plan Modifications: COUNTY and DEPARTMENT agree that the Plan must

remain a flexible instrument capable of responding to unforeseen needs
and requirements. COUNTY may modify the Plan according to ORS
423.525 and the administrative rules thereunder governing the support and
development of County Corrections Programs. A copy of all Plan
Modifications will be marked in sequence beginning with the designation
“Plan Modification 1” and attached to the above-mentioned Plan.
DEPARTMENT will notify COUNTY of any concerns about the modification
or the need for an amendment within a 30 calendar day period after
DEPARTMENT receives the Plan Modification.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



C. Notice of Modification: No Plan Modifications shall take effect until
COUNTY gives written notice to DEPARTMENT, in a form approved by
DEPARTMENT. DEPARTMENT shall provide to COUNTY an approved
form for modifications as soon as practicable after execution of this
Agreement.

IV. AMENDMENTS GENERALLY

The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented
or amended, in any manner whatsoever, except by written Amendment signed by
the parties.

V. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY

A. COUNTY shall assume administrative responsibility for correctional
supervision and services within its jurisdiction, as outlined in the Plan.

B. COUNTY shall designate a Community Corrections Manager.

C. COUNTY will meet the goals for community corrections in Oregon
described below:

1. Reduce Criminal Behavior
a. Indicator: recidivism, as measured by arrest, conviction, or
incarceration for a new crime within three years from initial
admission to probation.
b. Indicator: recidivism, as measured by arrest, conviction, or
incarceration for a new crime within three years from first
release to parole/post-prison supervision.

2. Enforce Court, Board of Parole and Post-Prison Supervision, and
Local Supervisory Authority Orders:
a. Indicator: the percentage of positive case closures for adults
on parole/post-prison supervision.
b. Indicator: the percentage of positive case closures for adults
on probation.

3. Assist Offenders to Change:

a. Indicator: employment rates for adults on supervision.
b. Indicator: substantial compliance with treatment requirements.
4. Provide Reparation to Victims and Community
a. Indicator: the percentage of restitution and compensatory
fines collected, owed to victims.
b. Indicator: the percentage of community service hours

provided by adults on supervision.
IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



D. Except as otherwise provided by the DEPARTMENT’s rules or orders,
COUNTY will adopt and implement a continuum of administrative sanctions
used by DEPARTMENT and the Board of Parole and Post-Prison
Supervision for violators of conditions of probation, parole and post-prison
supervision as authorized by ORS 144.106, 144.334, 144.343 and 137.540
and the rules thereunder. COUNTY will manage local control post-prison
supervision in accordance with the rules and practices of the Board of
Parole and Post-Prison supervision.

E. COUNTY will follow the Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s) applicable to
community corrections, including but not limited to the following:

1.

2.

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

18.
IGA #6914 Polk County

Network Information System Access and Security, OAR 291-005-

0005 through 291-005-0075.

Transfer (Community Corrections), OAR 291-019-0100 through OAR

291-019-0225.

Community Corrections Programs, OAR 291-031-0005 through OAR

291-031-0360.

Pre-sentence Reports, OAR 291-038-0005 through 291-038-0050.

Structured, Intermediate Sanctions, OAR 291-058-0010 through

OAR 291-058-0070.

Short-term Transitional Leaves, Emergency Leaves, and Supervised

Trips, OAR 291-063-0100 through 291-063-1040.

Records Management (AIC and Offender), OAR 291-070-0100

through OAR 291-070-0140.

Community Case Management, OAR 291-078-0005 through OAR

291-078-0031.

Admission, Sentence Computation and Release, OAR 291-100-0005

through OAR 291-100-0160.

Interstate Compact, OAR 291-180-0106 through OAR 291-180-0275.

Sex Offenders, Special Provisions, OAR 291-202-0010 through 291-

202-0130.

Active and Inactive Probation, OAR 291-206-005 through 291-206-

0030.

Earned Discharge, OAR 291-209-0010 through 291-209-0070.

Dangerous Offenders, OAR Chapter 255, Divisions 36 and 37.

Release to Post-Prison Supervision or Parole and Exit Interviews,

OAR Chapter 255, Division 60.

Conditions of Parole and Post-Prison Supervision, OAR Chapter

255, Division 70.

Procedures for Response to Parole and Post-Prison Supervision

Condition Violations for Offenders Under the Jurisdiction of the

Board of Parole and Post-Prison Supervision or Local Supervisory

Authority, OAR Chapter 255, Division 75.

Sex Offender Notification Levels, OAR Chapter 255, Division 85
Contracts ESM 062425



19.  Active and Inactive Parole and Post-Prison Supervision, OAR
Chapter 255, Division 94.
20.  Archiving, OAR Chapter 166.

F. COUNTY will follow all applicable Federal and State civil rights laws
including, but not limited to:

1. Federal Code, Title 5 USCA 7201 et seq. - Anti-discrimination in
Employment.

2. Oregon Statutes, Enforcement of Civil Rights: ORS 659A.009,
659A.006, and 659A.030.

3. Americans with Disabilities Act.

G. COUNTY will prepare and furnish such data, descriptive information and
reports as may be requested by DEPARTMENT as needed to comply with
ORS 423.520, which states in part, “The department shall require recipients
of the grants to cooperate [. . .] in the collection and sharing of data
necessary to evaluate the effect of community corrections programs on
future criminal conduct.” COUNTY will enter data into the Statewide
Evaluation and Information Systems in a complete, accurate, and timely
manner. COUNTY agrees to, and does hereby grant DEPARTMENT the
right to reproduce, use and disclose all or any part of such reports, data and
technical information furnished under this Agreement.

H. COUNTY will permit authorized representatives of DEPARTMENT to make
such review of records of COUNTY as may be necessary to satisfy audit or
program review purposes. A copy of any audit or monitoring report will be
made available to COUNTY.

COUNTY will follow DEPARTMENT prescribed allotment and expenditure
reporting system and shall provide this information on each discrete
program in the COUNTY Corrections Plan. This system will be used for
controlling County Corrections Grant funds by DEPARTMENT and to
provide suitable records for an audit. COUNTY will make available to the
DEPARTMENT copies of its annual audit report required by ORS 297.425.

J. If funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced or discontinued by legislative
action, COUNTY will not be required to increase use of COUNTY revenue
for continuing or maintaining corrections services as set out in this
Agreement. If funding is reduced below the amount set out in ORS 423.483,
the County may elect to terminate pursuant to Section X, below.

K. COUNTY will participate in all of the systems that comprise the Statewide
Evaluation and Information Systems. COUNTY will enter and keep
current information on adults on supervision in the Law Enforcement Data
System (LEDS) Enter Probation Record (EPR) System.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



L. COUNTY will retain responsibility for cases transferred to and accepted by
another state under the terms of the Interstate Compact for Adult Offender
Supervision, an agreement among states to provide supervision services
for parole, post-prison, and probation adults on supervision that relocate to
other states per ORS 144.610 and OAR 291-180-0106 through 291-180-
0275.

M. COUNTY will comply with ORS 182.515-182.525. Programs identified by
the committee described in ORS 423.150 and receiving any state grant
funds shall be evidence based. Evidence based programs are delivered
consistent with the findings in research about what works best to reduce
recidivism.

VI. DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

A. DEPARTMENT will furnish to COUNTY, in a timely manner, those
procedures, directives, records, documents and forms required for
COUNTY to meet its obligations.

B. Subject to system capacity and data processing capabilities,
DEPARTMENT will furnish data, descriptive information and reports,
available to DEPARTMENT and requested by COUNTY that will assist
COUNTY in complying with DEPARTMENT requirements. This data
includes, but is not limited to, details regarding outcomes noted in
Subsection V(C). DEPARTMENT hereby grants to COUNTY the right to
reproduce, use, and disclose all or part of such reports, data, and technical
information furnished under this Agreement.

C. DEPARTMENT agrees to provide COUNTY an opportunity to review and
comment on all new or revised administrative rules that have fiscal or
programmatic impact on COUNTY.

D. If by legislative action, funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced to COUNTY,
DEPARTMENT agrees to provide reasonable notice and transition
opportunity to COUNTY of changes that may significantly alter approved
appropriations and programs.

E. If COUNTY ceases to participate in County Corrections programs as
described in ORS Chapter 423, DEPARTMENT may recover title and
possession to property previously transferred to COUNTY or purchased by
COUNTY with County Corrections Grant funds.

F. DEPARTMENT grants to COUNTY continual access to the
DEPARTMENT’s computer system at no charge to COUNTY. All costs
(including but not limited to any equipment or software upgrades) to ensure
IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



this access; however, is the responsibility of COUNTY. If DEPARTMENT’s
computer is used in any way other than for pass-through of COUNTY data
to the DEPARTMENT’s system, COUNTY will provide support for additional
activities. DEPARTMENT will provide timely notification and technical
assistance when changes are made that impact applicable restrictions on
the software, if any. If COUNTY uses DEPARTMENT’s data circuits or
network connections to access a third party jail management system, the
terms of the attached Exhibit B apply. If DEPARTMENT determines that
COUNTY has not complied with the terms of Exhibit B, DEPARTMENT may
immediately suspend COUNTY access to DEPARTMENT’s computer
system.

DEPARTMENT’s Community Corrections Division will administer the
provisions of the Interstate Compact for Adult Offender Supervision, an
agreement among states to provide supervision services for adults on
parole, under post-prison supervision, and on probation that relocate to
other states per ORS 144.610 and OAR 291-180-0106 through 291-180-
0275.

DEPARTMENT will provide technical assistance to COUNTY in
implementing and evaluating COUNTY’s Plan.

DEPARTMENT will provide technical assistance to COUNTY on changes in
Oregon Statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules.

VII. FUNDS

A.

The Budget Summary, Exhibit A, lists the County Corrections Grant funds
authorized under this Agreement for the implementation of the Plan during
the term of this Agreement.

The Plan and this fully executed Agreement must be received by the
DEPARTMENT from the COUNTY. After receipt of both the Plan and the
executed Agreement, DEPARTMENT will authorize payments to the
COUNTY as scheduled in this Section VII.

The first payment to COUNTY will occur as soon as possible after the
DEPARTMENT’s budget is legislatively approved and implemented and
quarterly thereafter.

The DEPARTMENT will disburse to COUNTY one eighth of the County
Correction Grant Funds authorized under this Agreement within 15 days of
each of the following dates; 7/1/25, 10/1/25, 1/1/26, 4/1/26, 7/1/26, 10/1/26,
1/1/27, and 4/1/27.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



DEPARTMENT's obligation to disburse County Correction Grant Funds is
subject to satisfaction, on the date of each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions:

1. COUNTY is in compliance with all terms and conditions of this
Agreement;
2. This Agreement has not been terminated; and

3. DEPARTMENT has received funding, appropriations, limitations,
allotments, or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow
DEPARTMENT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative
discretion, to make the disbursement.

E. Both parties agree that all reallocations of funds between or within
programs shall require a County Community Corrections Plan Modification,
except that COUNTY may reallocate up to ten percent of funds in any
budget category in the approved Plan between or within programs without a
County Community Corrections Plan Modification. COUNTY shall notify
DEPARTMENT in writing of such reallocation within 30 days after making
the reallocation.

F. Unexpended Funds: Fund balances remaining at the termination of this
agreement may be retained by the COUNTY, upon approval by the
DEPARTMENT, for the provision of on-going supervision, correctional
services, and sanctions in accordance with the Plan.

G. Supervision fees collected by COUNTY pursuant to ORS 423.570 and its
administrative rules will be used to offset costs of supervising the probation,
parole, post-prison supervision or other supervised release.

H. Unauthorized Expenditures: Any County Corrections Grant Funds
expended for unauthorized purposes will be deducted by DEPARTMENT
from subsequent payments under this Agreement or refunded to
DEPARTMENT upon request.

For purposes of the delivery of field corrections services, DEPARTMENT
recognizes COUNTY as an ongoing partner for all County Corrections
appropriations provided by the State of Oregon Legislature according to
ORS 423.475 to 423.565.

J. Funding for Sexually Violent Dangerous Offenders: After receipt and
review of an invoice from the COUNTY, DEPARMENT will reimburse
COUNTY at the daily rate established by the DEPARTMENT for the
intensive supervision of adults on supervision designated as sexually
violent dangerous offenders by the Court or Board of Parole and Post-

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



Prison Supervision only from the amount specifically appropriated for the
increased level of supervision of such adults on supervision.

In the event that the COUNTY retains funds to spend in the next biennium
under Subsection VII(F), then Subsections VII (D)-(G) and (I)-(J) will survive
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

VIl  NONCOMPLIANCE

A.

The Assistant Director of Community Corrections or the Assistant Director’'s
designee shall biennially review COUNTY's compliance with this Agreement
under ORS 423.500 to 423.560. COUNTY must substantially comply with
the provisions of the Plan received by DEPARMENT and this Agreement.

If, upon review, DEPARTMENT determines that there are reasonable
grounds to believe that COUNTY is not in substantial compliance with this
Agreement or Plan, DEPARTMENT shall contact COUNTY regarding the
alleged noncompliance and offer technical assistance to reach compliance.
If COUNTY does not resolve the alleged noncompliance, DEPARTMENT
shall, after giving COUNTY not less than 30 calendar days' notice, conduct
a hearing to ascertain whether there is substantial compliance or
satisfactory progress being made toward compliance. After technical
assistance, which may include peer review or other assistance, is provided
and the hearing occurs, DEPARTMENT may suspend any portion of the
funding made available to COUNTY under ORS 423.500 to 423.560 until
County complies as required.

In the event that a dispute arises, COUNTY may appeal to the Director of
the Department of Corrections.

IX INDEMNIFICATION COUNTY shall comply with the contribution, ADR,
subcontractor indemnity and subcontractor insurance requirements set forth in Exhibit C.

X TERMINATION

A.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement will
remain in force only during its term and will not continue in force after its
term. There will be no automatic extension, but this Agreement may be
extended only by written Amendment.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that if any part, term or
provision of this Agreement, including any part, term or provision of any
appended material, is held by a court to be illegal or in conflict with any law
of the State of Oregon or applicable administrative rule, that element of this
Agreement including relevant appended materials will be void and without

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



Xl

effect and will be treated by the parties as having been terminated as of the
date of determination of the voidness.

C. If COUNTY chooses to discontinue participation in the Plan as described in
this Agreement and ORS 423.483(2), COUNTY may terminate participation
at the end of any month by delivery of a resolution of the Board of
Commissioners to the DEPARTMENT’s Director or the Director’s designee
not less than 180 calendar days before the date on which COUNTY intends
to discontinue its participation. Termination of COUNTY participation may
occur only at the end of a month. This Agreement will terminate on the
same date that COUNTY discontinues its participation in the Plan.

D. If COUNTY terminates participation, the following will apply:

1. The responsibility for correctional services transferred to COUNTY
and any unused County Corrections Grant funds will revert to
DEPARTMENT.

2. The responsibility for supervision of and provision of correctional

services to misdemeanor offenders does not revert to
DEPARTMENT under any circumstances except those of adults on
supervision convicted of designated drug-related misdemeanors or
designated person misdemeanors.

E. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement will
automatically terminate if the State of Oregon fails to provide any funding. If
there is reduced state funding as described in ORS 423.483, County may
terminate the Agreement as described herein.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW

Both Parties shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations,
executive orders, and ordinances to which each is subject and which is applicable
to this Agreement. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties
expressly agree to comply with: (i) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii)
Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules
established pursuant to those laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of
federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.
DEPARTMENT’s performance under this Agreement is conditioned upon
COUNTY’s compliance with the provisions of ORS 279B.220, 279B.230, 279B.235
and 279B.270, as amended from time to time, which are made applicable to this
Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference. All employers, including
COUNTY, that employ subject workers who work under this Agreement in the
State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers’
Compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



Xl

Xl

XIv

XV

XVI

COUNTY shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these
requirements.

Nothing is this Agreement shall require County or Department to act in violation of
state or federal law or the Constitution of the State of Oregon.

ACCESS TO RECORDS

For not less than six (6) years after Agreement expiration or termination,
DEPARTMENT, the Secretary of State’s Office of the State of Oregon, the federal
government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the
books, documents, papers and records of COUNTY which are directly pertinent to
this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and
transcripts. COUNTY shall retain all pertinent records until the later of: (i) the date
that is not less than six (6) years following the Agreement expiration or termination
date or (ii) the date on which all litigation regarding this Agreement is resolved.
COUNTY agrees that full access to DEPARTMENT will be provided in preparation
for and during litigation and that copies of applicable records shall be made
available upon request and payment by DEPARTMENT for the COUNTY’s cost to
produce the copies.

SURVIVAL

All rights and obligations shall cease upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement, except for the rights and obligations set forth in Sections IV, IX, X, XI,
XIl, X1I, and XIV.

GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; VENUE

The laws of the State of Oregon (without giving effect to its conflicts of law
principles) govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including,
without limitation, its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and
enforcement. Any party bringing a legal action or proceeding against any other
party arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall bring the legal action or
proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for Marion County. Each
party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives any
objection to venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient
forum.

WAIVER

The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement will not
constitute a waiver by that party of that or any other provision.

EXECUTION AND COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which will be an
original, all of which will constitute but one and the same instrument.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



XVIIT MERGER; INTEGRATION

This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties and no
statement made by any party hereto, or agent thereof, not contained or attached
with reference thereto in this written agreement will be valid or binding. This
Agreement will supersede all previous communications, representations, whether
verbal or written, between the parties hereto. This Agreement may not be
enlarged, modified or altered except in writing, signed by the parties, and attached.

STATE OF OREGON POLK COUNTY

DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Eric McDowell, Contracts Officer Chair

Date Date

Approved for Legal Sufficiency
Oregon Attorney General’s Office:

/s/ Nina Englander per email dated 5/19/2025
Assistant Attorney General

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



EXHIBIT A

BUDGET SUMMARY
POLK COUNTY
(to be added by DEPARTMENT after
COUNTY submission of the County Corrections Plan)

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



EXHIBIT B
POLK COUNTY

NETWORK ACCESS BY COUNTY

1. COUNTY jail users will be permitted to use existing DEPARTMENT data circuits to
access third party systems. Access is permitted for jail management system application
users only. COUNTY jail users will not be permitted to use DEPARTMENT circuits for
video conferencing, Real Audio, Internet access, applications that require large amounts
of bandwidth, or other jail management software online service or system unless
approved by DEPARTMENT. COUNTY jail users will be permitted to use
DEPARTMENT’s data circuits for video image transmissions using a NIST standard
(available from DEPARTMENT upon request).

A. All network traffic covered by this agreement will employ TCP/IP
network protocols.

B. DEPARTMENT will continue its policy of only providing one router to
each county. This means that if COUNTY’s jail and the parole and
probation office are located in separate buildings, COUNTY will be
responsible for providing a connection between the two buildings.

2. COUNTY understands and acknowledges that DEPARTMENT is subject to the
public records provision of ORS 192.311 through 192.478 and other applicable laws and
administrative rules which establish uniform guidelines and procedures for the release of
information from DEPARTMENT’s computer system.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



EXHIBIT C
INDEMNIFICATION
POLK COUNTY

Contribution

If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort
as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a party (the
"Notified Party") with respect to which the other party ("Other Party") may have liability,
the Notified Party must promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim
and deliver to the Other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with
respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is entitled to participate in the defense of a
Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing.
Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and
meaningful opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense and
settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions
precedent to the Other Party’s liability with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the Department is jointly liable with the
County (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), the Department shall contribute to
the amount of expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the County in such
proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Department on the one hand
and of the County on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault of the Department on the one hand and of the
County on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other things, the
parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or
prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement
amounts. The Department’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the same
extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the Department had sole liability in
the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the County is jointly liable with the
Department (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the County shall contribute to
the amount of expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the Department in
such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the County on the one
hand and of the Department on the other hand in connection with the events which
resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other
relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the County on the one hand and of
the Department on the other hand shall be determined by reference to, among other
things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to
correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, fines or
settlement amounts. The County’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to the
same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the
proceeding.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



Alternative Dispute Resolution

The parties should attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this
agreement. This may be done at any management level, including at a level higher than
persons directly responsible for administration of the agreement. In addition, the parties
may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to
resolve the dispute short of litigation.

Indemnification by Subcontractors

County shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”) from
and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260)
caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or
omissions of County’s contractor or any of the officers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of the contractor( “Claims”). It is the specific intention of the parties that
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent
or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and
against any and all Claims.

Subcontractor Insurance Requirements
GENERAL

County shall require its first tier contractor(s) that are not units of local government as
defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the
contractors perform under contracts between County and the contractors (the
"Subcontracts"), and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of the
Subcontracts. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that
are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of
Oregon and that are acceptable to County. County shall not authorize contractors to
begin work under the Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, County
shall monitor continued compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or
more frequent basis. County shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts
permitting it to enforce contractor compliance with the insurance requirements and shall
take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. Examples of "reasonable

steps" include issuing stop work orders (or the equivalent) until the insurance is in full
force or terminating the Subcontracts as permitted by the Subcontracts, or pursuing legal
action to enforce the insurance requirements. In no event shall County permit a
contractor to work under a Subcontract when the County is aware that the contractor is
not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, a “first tier”
contractor is a contractor with which the county directly enters into a contract. It does not
include a subcontractor with which the contractor enters into a contract.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



TYPES AND AMOUNTS

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Professional Liability Insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or
negligent act related to the services to be provided under the Subcontract, with limits not
less than $2,000,000, as determined by the Department:

"TAIL" COVERAGE If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made"
basis, such as professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either “tail"
coverage or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of
the continuous “claims made” coverage is on or before the effective date of the
Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of : (i) the contractor’'s
completion and County ’s acceptance of all Services required under the Subcontract or,
(ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain
“tail” coverage and if the maximum time period “tail” coverage reasonably available in the
marketplace is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may
request and the Department may grant approval of the maximum “tail “ coverage period
reasonably available in the marketplace. If Department approval is granted, the
contractor shall maintain “tail” coverage for the maximum time period that “tail” coverage
is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE The contractor or its insurer must provide
30 days’ written notice to County before cancellation of, material change to, potential
exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE County shall obtain from the contractor a
certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under
the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities
and individuals who are endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance
on a “claims made” basis, the extended reporting period applicable to “tail” or continuous
“claims made” coverage.

IGA #6914 Polk County Contracts ESM 062425



e~ CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET
POLK COUNTY

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Rivera Phone Number (Ext): 2550

Department:  Health Services: Public Health Consent Calendar Date: October 15, 2025

Contractor Name: Oregon Health Authority

Address: 635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350

City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301

Effective Dates - From:  September 01, 2025 Through: June 30,2026

Contract Amount: $6,331.00

Background:

The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to residents
of the County by way of a grant. This is Amendment 3 to IGA 185827 (No. 25-109) the initial award from the
State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to reflect changes to
funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant.

Discussion:

This Amendment 3 to the PH CFAA awards additional funding to PE44-01 SBHC Base in the amount of
$5,000 and PE51-01 LPHA Leadership, Governance and Program Implementation in the amount of $1,331 for
a total Amendment award of $6,331.

Fiscal Impact:

The total award for this Amendment is a net increase of $6,331 in funding for FY2025-26, with services
remaining as status quo.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that Polk County sign Amendment 3 to IGA 185827 with the Oregon Health Authority.

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:
Name: Rosana Warren Rivera E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us

Name: E-mail:




Polk County Contract No. 25-181 (Amendment 3 to 25-109)
OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice)
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format.

Agreement #185827

AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

This Third Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2025-2027 Intergovernmental Agreement for the
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2025, (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Polk County, (“LPHA”), the entity
designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County. OHA and LPHA
are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to the Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Financial Assistance Award set forth in Exhibit C of
the Agreement.

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance
at 2 CFR Part 200 as set forth in Exhibit J of the Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. This Amendment is effective on September 1, 2025, regardless of the date this amendment has been
fully executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of
Justice. However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed.

2. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
a. Exhibit A “Definitions”, Section 18 “Program Element” is amended to replace the line items for
PEO3 as follows:
HIPAA SUB-
PE NUMBER AND TITLE gUND FEDERAL AGENCY/ CFDA# | RELATED | RECIPIENT
- YPE
e SUB-ELEMENT(S) GRANT TITLE (Y/N) (Y/N)
PEO3 Tuberculosis Services
GF N/A N/A N N
PE 03 Tuberculosis Case Tuberculosis Control &
Management Elimination with Laboratory
FF Services for the state of 93.116 N N
Oregon
PE 03-02 Tuberculosis Case FF Tu.be.rcul'osm Control & 93.116 N v
Management Elimination
b. Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled “Financial Assistance Award” is hereby

superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment A, entitled “Financial Assistance Award”,

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment A must be read in
conjunction with Section 2 of Exhibit C.

185827 TLH

AMENDMENT #3

PAGE 1 OF 5 PAGES




OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

c. Exhibit J of the Agreement entitled “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at
2 CFR Part 200” is amended to add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in
Attachment B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in
Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if
made on the date hereof.

Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in
the Agreement.

Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together
shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth

below their respective signatures.

7.

Signatures.

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY

Approved by:

Name: /for/ Nadia A. Davidson
Title: Director of Finance
Date:

POLK COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY

Approved by:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE — APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

Agreement form group-approved by Devon Thorson, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on August 11, 2025,
copy of email approval in Agreement file.

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Reviewed by:

Name: Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)
Title: Program Support Manager

Date:

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #3 PAGE 2 OF 5 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

185827 TLH

Attachment A
Exhibit C - Financial Assistance Award

State of Oregon
Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

1) Grantee

Name: Polk County

Street: 182 SW Academy, Suite 302
City: Dallas
State: OR Zip: 97338-1900

2) Issue Date

Monday, September 1, 2025

This Action

Amendment

FY 2026

3) Award Period
From July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved

Previous
Award Increase / Current Award

Number Program Balance Decrease Balance
PEO1-01 State Support for Public Health 524,872 25 $0.00 $24.872.25
PEO1-12 ACDP Infection Prevention Training $1,517 82 $0.00 $1,517.82
PEO3 Tuberculosis Case Management $3,800.00 $0.00 $3,800.00
PE12-01 Public Health Emergency Preparedness $58,389.00 $0.00 $58,389.00

and Response (PHEP)
PE13 Tobacco Prevention and Education $8,250.00 $0.00 $8,250.00

Program (TPEP)
PE36 Alcohol & Drug Prevention Education $82,250.00 $0.00 $82,250.00

Program (ADPEP)
PE36-01 QOSPTR Board Primary Prevention Funding $99,436.00 $0.00 $99,436.00
PE40-01 WIC NSA: July - September $63,865.00 $0.00 $63,865.00
PE40-02 WIC NSA: October - June $191,595.00 $0.00 $191,595.00
PE40-05 Farmer's Market $1,661.00 $0.00 $1,661.00
PE42-03 MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX $9,546.00 $0.00 $9,546.00
PE42-04 MCAH Babies First! General Funds $10,612.00 $0.00 $10,612.00
PE42-11 MCAH Title V $35,267.00 $0.00 $35,287.00
PE42-12 MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V $2,586.00 $0.00 %$2,586.00
PEA3-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - $21,893.00 $0.00 $21,893.00

Immunization Services

AMENDMENT #3

PAGE 3 OF 5 PAGES




OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

185827 TLH

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved

Previous
Award Increase / Current Award
Number Program Balance Decrease Balance
PE44-01 SBHC Base $60,000.00 $5,000.00 $65,000.00
PE44-02 SBHC - Mental Health Expansion $77,000.00 $0.00 $77.,000.00
PE46-05 RH Community Participation & Assurance $23,729.00 $0.00 $23,729.00
of Access
PESO Safe Drinking Water (SDW) Program $13,312.42 $0.00 $13,312.42
(Vendors)
PE51-01 LPHA Leadership, Governance and $508,400.50 $1,331.00 $509,731.50
Program Implementation
PE51-05 CDC PH Infrastructure Funding $72,359.00 $0.00 $72,359.00
PE63 MCAH LPHA Community Lead $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00
Organizations
PE81-01 HIV/STI Statewide Services (HSSS) Federal $25,864.00 $0.00 $25,864.00
Funds
PEB1-02 HIV/STI Statewide Services (HSSS) $125,390.00 $0.00 $125,390.00
Program Income
$1,581,614.99 $6,331.00| $1,587,945.99

5) Foot Notes:

PEO1-01 07/2025: funding available 7/1/25-9/30/25 only.
PE40-01 07/2025: funds available 7/1/25-9/30/2025 only
PE40-02 07/2025: funds available 10/1/25-6/30/26 only
PE42-11 07/2025: Indirect rate caps at 10%.

PE42-12 07/2025: Indirect rate caps at 10%.

6) Comments:

PE36 08/2025: Prior comment null and void
07/2025: $20,562.50 available 7/1/25 - 9/30/25 only.
PE36-01 07/2025: This funding supersedes funding from KT#154982-5.
PES1-01 07/2025: $23,709 available 7/1/25-5/31/26 only; $2,155 available 6/1/26-6/30/26 only

7) Capital outlay Requested in this action:

Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay. Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equipment with a
purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

Program Item Description Cost PROG APPROV

AMENDMENT #3

PAGE 4 OF 5 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Attachment B
Exhibit J - Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200

PEO3 Tuberculosis Case Management

Federal Award Identification Number: NU52PS910280 NU52PS910280
Federal Award Date: '08/1 8/25
Budget Performance Period:|01/01/2025-12/31/2025 01/01/2026-12/31/2026
Awarding Agency:| CDC CDC
CFDA Number:[93 116 93.116
CFDA Name:| Tyberculosis Control & Tuberculosis Control &
Elimination Elimination
Total Federal Award: '543624 TBD
Project Description:(Tyberculosis Control & Tuberculosis Control &
Elimination with Laboratory [Elimination with Laboratory
Services for the state of Services for the state of
Oregon Oregon
Awarding Official:| My, Shameer Poonja Mr. Shameer Poonja
Indirect Cost Rate:| 16.96% TBD
Research and Development (T/F):FA|LSE FALSE
HIPPA|No No
Agency UEI Amount Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $1,900.00 $1,900.00 $3,800.00

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #3 PAGE 5 OF 5 PAGES



	25-180.pdf
	I. DEFINITIONS
	V.      DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF COUNTY
	A. COUNTY shall assume administrative responsibility for correctional supervision and services within its jurisdiction, as outlined in the Plan.
	B. COUNTY shall designate a Community Corrections Manager.
	C. COUNTY will meet the goals for community corrections in Oregon described below:
	1. Network Information System Access and Security, OAR 291-005-0005 through 291-005-0075.
	2. Transfer (Community Corrections), OAR 291-019-0100 through OAR 291-019-0225.
	3. Community Corrections Programs, OAR 291-031-0005 through OAR 291-031-0360.
	4. Pre-sentence Reports, OAR 291-038-0005 through 291-038-0050.
	5. Structured, Intermediate Sanctions, OAR 291-058-0010 through OAR 291-058-0070.
	6. Short-term Transitional Leaves, Emergency Leaves, and Supervised Trips, OAR 291-063-0100 through 291-063-1040.
	7. Records Management (AIC and Offender), OAR 291-070-0100 through OAR 291-070-0140.
	8. Community Case Management, OAR 291-078-0005 through OAR 291-078-0031.
	9. Admission, Sentence Computation and Release, OAR 291-100-0005 through OAR 291-100-0160.
	10. Interstate Compact, OAR 291-180-0106 through OAR 291-180-0275.
	11. Sex Offenders, Special Provisions, OAR 291-202-0010 through 291-202-0130.
	12. Active and Inactive Probation, OAR 291-206-005 through 291-206-0030.
	13. Earned Discharge, OAR 291-209-0010 through 291-209-0070.
	14. Dangerous Offenders, OAR Chapter 255, Divisions 36 and 37.
	15. Release to Post-Prison Supervision or Parole and Exit Interviews, OAR Chapter 255, Division 60.
	16. Conditions of Parole and Post-Prison Supervision, OAR Chapter 255, Division 70.
	17. Procedures for Response to Parole and Post-Prison Supervision Condition Violations for Offenders Under the Jurisdiction of the Board of Parole and Post-Prison Supervision or Local Supervisory Authority, OAR Chapter 255, Division 75.
	18. Sex Offender Notification Levels, OAR Chapter 255, Division 85
	19. Active and Inactive Parole and Post-Prison Supervision, OAR Chapter 255, Division 94.
	20. Archiving, OAR Chapter 166.
	F. COUNTY will follow all applicable Federal and State civil rights laws including, but not limited to:
	1. Federal Code, Title 5 USCA 7201 et seq. - Anti-discrimination in Employment.
	2. Oregon Statutes, Enforcement of Civil Rights: ORS 659A.009, 659A.006, and 659A.030.
	3. Americans with Disabilities Act.
	G. COUNTY will prepare and furnish such data, descriptive information and reports as may be requested by DEPARTMENT as needed to comply with ORS 423.520, which states in part, “The department shall require recipients of the grants to cooperate [. . .]...
	H. COUNTY will permit authorized representatives of DEPARTMENT to make such review of records of COUNTY as may be necessary to satisfy audit or program review purposes.  A copy of any audit or monitoring report will be made available to COUNTY.
	I. COUNTY will follow DEPARTMENT prescribed allotment and expenditure reporting system and shall provide this information on each discrete program in the COUNTY Corrections Plan.  This system will be used for controlling County Corrections Grant funds...
	J. If funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced or discontinued by legislative action, COUNTY will not be required to increase use of COUNTY revenue for continuing or maintaining corrections services as set out in this Agreement. If funding is reduced below ...
	K. COUNTY will participate in all of the systems that comprise the Statewide Evaluation and Information Systems.    COUNTY will enter and keep current information on adults on supervision in the Law Enforcement Data System (LEDS) Enter Probation Recor...
	L. COUNTY will retain responsibility for cases transferred to and accepted by another state under the terms of the Interstate Compact for Adult Offender Supervision, an agreement among states to provide supervision services for parole, post-prison, an...
	M. COUNTY will comply with ORS 182.515-182.525.  Programs identified by the committee described in ORS 423.150 and receiving any state grant funds shall be evidence based.  Evidence based programs are delivered consistent with the findings in research...

	VI. DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES
	A. DEPARTMENT will furnish to COUNTY, in a timely manner, those procedures, directives, records, documents and forms required for COUNTY to meet its obligations.
	B. Subject to system capacity and data processing capabilities, DEPARTMENT will furnish data, descriptive information and reports, available to DEPARTMENT and requested by COUNTY that will assist COUNTY in complying with DEPARTMENT requirements.  This...
	C. DEPARTMENT agrees to provide COUNTY an opportunity to review and comment on all new or revised administrative rules that have fiscal or programmatic impact on COUNTY.
	D. If by legislative action, funding from DEPARTMENT is reduced to COUNTY, DEPARTMENT agrees to provide reasonable notice and transition opportunity to COUNTY of changes that may significantly alter approved appropriations and programs.
	E. If COUNTY ceases to participate in County Corrections programs as described in ORS Chapter 423, DEPARTMENT may recover title and possession to property previously transferred to COUNTY or purchased by COUNTY with County Corrections Grant funds.
	F. DEPARTMENT grants to COUNTY continual access to the DEPARTMENT’s computer system at no charge to COUNTY.  All costs (including but not limited to any equipment or software upgrades) to ensure this access; however, is the responsibility of COUNTY.  ...
	G. DEPARTMENT’s Community Corrections Division will administer the provisions of the Interstate Compact for Adult Offender Supervision, an agreement among states to provide supervision services for adults on parole, under post-prison supervision, and ...
	A. The Budget Summary, Exhibit A, lists the County Corrections Grant funds authorized under this Agreement for the implementation of the Plan during the term of this Agreement.
	B. The Plan and this fully executed Agreement must be received by the DEPARTMENT from the COUNTY.   After receipt of both the Plan and the executed Agreement, DEPARTMENT will authorize payments to the COUNTY as scheduled in this Section VII.
	C. The first payment to COUNTY will occur as soon as possible after the DEPARTMENT’s budget is legislatively approved and implemented and quarterly thereafter.
	D. The DEPARTMENT will disburse to COUNTY one eighth of the County Correction Grant Funds authorized under this Agreement within 15 days of each of the following dates; 7/1/25, 10/1/25, 1/1/26, 4/1/26, 7/1/26, 10/1/26, 1/1/27, and 4/1/27.
	DEPARTMENT’s obligation to disburse County Correction Grant Funds is subject to satisfaction, on the date of each disbursement, of each of the following conditions:
	E. Both parties agree that all reallocations of funds between or within programs shall require a County Community Corrections Plan Modification, except that COUNTY may reallocate up to ten percent of funds in any budget category in the approved Plan b...
	F. Unexpended Funds:  Fund balances remaining at the termination of this agreement may be retained by the COUNTY, upon approval by the DEPARTMENT, for the provision of on-going supervision, correctional services, and sanctions in accordance with the P...

	H. Unauthorized Expenditures: Any County Corrections Grant Funds expended for unauthorized purposes will be deducted by DEPARTMENT from subsequent payments under this Agreement or refunded to DEPARTMENT upon request.
	I. For purposes of the delivery of field corrections services, DEPARTMENT recognizes COUNTY as an ongoing partner for all County Corrections appropriations provided by the State of Oregon Legislature according to ORS 423.475 to 423.565.
	J. Funding for Sexually Violent Dangerous Offenders:  After receipt and review of an invoice from the COUNTY, DEPARMENT will reimburse COUNTY at the daily rate established by the DEPARTMENT for the intensive supervision of adults on supervision design...
	K. In the event that the COUNTY retains funds to spend in the next biennium under Subsection VII(F), then Subsections VII (D)-(G) and (I)-(J) will survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.
	VIII NONCOMPLIANCE
	A. The Assistant Director of Community Corrections or the Assistant Director’s designee shall biennially review COUNTY's compliance with this Agreement under ORS 423.500 to 423.560.  COUNTY must substantially comply with the provisions of the Plan rec...

	X TERMINATION
	A. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement will remain in force only during its term and will not continue in force after its term. There will be no automatic extension, but this Agreement may be extended only by written ...
	XI COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW
	XVII MERGER; INTEGRATION
	EXHIBIT A


	EXHIBIT C INDEMNIFICATION

	25-181 (Amend 3 to 25-109).pdf
	2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
	FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT



	Staff Contact: Jodi Merritt
	Department: Community Corrections
	Title: Director
	Consent Calendar Date: 
	Contractor Name: State of Oregon, Department of Corrections
	Contractor Address: 2575 Center Street NE
	City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301
	From: July 1, 2025
	Thru: June 30, 2027
	Contract Amount: 4,376,222
	Sole Source: Off
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Off
	Special/Exempt: Yes
	Special Exempt: 
	Discussion: The DOC through the Community Corrections division provides funding to counties for supervision of clients within the community. PCCC provides three main divisions supported by the State of Oregon's Community Corrections Act funding. These divisions include: Supervision - supporting 7 FTE and supervise approximately 520 adult felony/misdemeanor clients within the community; Programs - provide funding for clients to access necessary programs to assist in cognitive development and restructuring; Community Service - supports 3 FTE to provide restorative justice within the community.
	Fiscal Impact: This agreement will provide $4,376,222 in revenue to the department over the biennium - July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2027.  
	Recommendation: Community Corrections recommends approval of this agreement to provide continued support to the supervision of offenders within the community.
	E-mail: hittle.sam@polkcountyor.gov
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Sam Hittle
	Name 2: 
	E-mail 2: 
	Name 3: 


